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Phone 270-821-3355"' Fax 270-821-0101 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable Mayor Scotty Harvey 
and Colll).ci\ Members 
City ofNori:onville, Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements . . . ·. . . . . .· . . ·. 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental etctivi)ies, tne business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Npr:tonville, Ke11tycky, as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which c9llectively comprise the 
City'. s basic fmancial statements as listed. in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Fin.ancial Statements .. 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmancial statements in accordance with 
accolll).ting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, impleinentation, 
and maintenance of iniernal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility . . . 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to fiiiancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard<, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
fmancial statements are free from material misstatement. · 

An audit involves performing prncedures to obtain audit.evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The pro<;edures selected depend on the .auditors' jlldgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not· for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on ihe effectiveness of the entity's iµternal control.Accordingiy, we express n? such opinion. 
An. audit also includes. evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used '\fid the reasonableriess of 
significant accolll).ting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fmancial 
statements. 

We believe that. the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 
In our opinion, the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Nortonville, Kentucky, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows ihereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the,General 
Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

• I • 



Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Acc9unting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the pension schedules on 
pages 36 - 38 be presented to supplement the basic finan9ial statements. Such inform,ation, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the infonnation and comparing the infonnation 
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and oti)er knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic fmancial statements. We do not express fill opinion or provide any 
assurance on the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to ex~ress an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic fmancial statements. Such missing 
information, although not a part of the basic fmancial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of fmancial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial 
statements is not affected by this missing infonn~tion. ' 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fanning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of Nortonville, Kentucky's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fuud 
fmancial statements/schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic fmancial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund fmancial statements/schedules are the responsibility of management 
and were derived from and relate dire9tly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
fmancial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nomnajor fuud fmancfal 
statements/schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial ·statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 6, 2019, on our 
consideration of the City of Nortonville, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scop~ of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over fmancial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City of Nortonville, Kentucky's internal control over fmancial · reporting and 

compliance. ~ 
. . • OJ~·. '#C! 

Berry Kingt~ PSC 
Madisonville, Kentucky . 
December 6, 2019 
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CJll'Y OF NOR'll'ONVJ[LJLE, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF NET POS][TJON 

JUNE 30, 2017 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities . Activities Totals 

Assets 
Cash eqnivalents $ 515,600 $ 66,160 $ 581,760 
Accounts receivable (net of allowance) 229,162 85,075 314,237 
Unbilled revenue 24,774 24,774 
Inventory 11,943 11,943 
Prepayments 2,559 2,970 5,529 
Internal balances 30,000 (30,000) 
Restricted assets: 

Cash equivalents 368,071 368,071 
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 816 747 6,427,891 7,244,638 · 

Total Assets 1,594,068 6,956,884 8,550,952 

Deferred ,Outflows of Resomrces 
Related to pensions ID,223 . 26,563 36,786 

Total Assets and! Deferl!'ed Outflows 1,604,291 6,983,447 8,587,738 

Liabilities 
Accouuts payable 14,056 16,876 30,932 
Accrued payroll and related expenses ~,090 6,511 8,601 
Accrued interest payable 67,215 67,215 
Customer deposits 215 29,427 29,642 
Current portion of!oilg-term debt 8,402 161,000 169,402 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Notes and bonds payable (net of discount) 8,615 4,193,332 4,201,947 
Net pension liability 44 353 142,148 186,501 
Total Liabilities 77 731 4,616,509 4,694,240 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred property tax revenue 19,454 19,454 
Relate(! to pensions 9412 26,114 35,526 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 28,866 26,114 54 980 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 799,730 2,073,559 2,873,289 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 139,856 139,856 
Municipal aid and Cemetery 141,633 141,633 
Customer deposits 215 215 
Perpetual care cemetery 5,434 5,434 

Unrestricted 550,682 127,409 678,091 

Total Net Position $ 1,497,694 $ 2,340,824 $ 3,838,518 

See accompanying notes to ~nancial statements. 



Functions!ProJ?lams 

Primary Government 
Governmental'-activities 

General government 
Public safe1y 
Public streets 
Library 
Interest on long-term debt 
Depreciation 

Total governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Water distribution 
Sewer distribution 

Total business-type activities 

Total Primary Government 

General Revenues and Transfers 
Taxes 

Insurance premium taxes 
Proper1y taxes 
Occupational taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Other taxes 

Transfers 
fuvestment income 
Miscellaneous 
Gain (loss) on equipment disposal 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in Net Position 

Net Positj_Q_n~_Beginning 

Net Position - Endmg 

$ 

$ 

(:ITY OF NORTONVILLE, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE 1(EARENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

ProfQ:am Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grants and 
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions 

139,445 $ - $ 5,516 $ 
19,653 90,754 
44,332 - 45,947 

9,788 - -
638 

66,938 - -
280,794 - _142,217 -

282,502 300,306 - 468,617 
625,538 546 928 -
908,040 847 234 - 468617 

1,188,834 $ 847 234 $ 142,217 $ 468 617 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Net (Expense)Revenue and 
Crnmges in Net Position 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

$ (133,929) $ - $ (133,929) 
71,101 - 71,101 

1,615 - 1,615 
(9,788) - (9,788) 

(638) (638) 
(66,938) (66,938) 

(138,577) - (138,577) 

- 486,421 486,421 
- (78,610) (78,610) 
- 407 811 407 811 

(138,57:z) 407 811 269 234 

123,272 - 123,272 
74,781 74,781 
35,730 35,730 
37,424 - 37,424 

2,931 - 2,931 
(40,245) 40,245 

349 115 464 
245,569 1,424 246,993 · 

(6,779) (5,995) (12,774) 
473,032 35,789 508 821 

334,455 443,600 778,055 

1,163,239 1,897,224 3,060,463 

$ 1,497,694 $ 2,340,824 $ 3,838,518 

~~-··· "'"·- I......- ··-· '-"- .,.,,,._ ,,,,_ ~"- -.....,_, , __ .,., --~,., ___ , -,.•' _,_;, __ ..,.. 
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!CITY OF NORTONV:U:lLlLE, KENTUCKY 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNME.N1'A.LFUNDS 
JU.NE 30, 21111 

Other 
General Governmental 

Fund Funds 

Assets 
Cash equivalents $ 368,532 $ 147,067 
Due from other funds 30,000 
Taxpayer assessed revenues receivable 229,162 
Prepaid insurance 2 559 

Total Assets $ 630,253 $ 147067 

Liabilities and Fnnd Balance 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 14,056 $ 
Accrued payroll and related expenses 2,090 
Customer deposits 215 
Deferred property tax revenue 19 454 

Total Liabilities 35 815 

Fnnd Balance 
Nonsperidable-Perpetual care 5,434 
Restricted-Municipal Aid and Cemetery 141,633 
Unassigl!ed 594 438 

Total Fund Balance 594 438 147 067 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 630,253 $ 147 067 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 515,599 
30,000 

229,162 
2 559 

$ 777.320 

$ 14,056 
2,090 

215 
19454 
35;815 

5,434 
141,633 
594,438 
741505 

$ 777.320 



Cl[TY OFNORTONVJ[LLE, KENTUCKY 
RECONCil:LIATi:ON OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OFJIIET POSITION 

JUNE 30,2017 

Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current fmancial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental 
funds balance sheet: 

Governmental capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance 
sheet: 

Capital lease obligation 

Net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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$ 1,810,501 
(993,754) 

$ . 741,505 

816,747 

(17,017) 

(43,541) 

$ 1,497,694 
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CITY OF NORTONVll:LLE, KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF REVENlJES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES.IN FUND BALANCE 
GOVERNMENt:AJLFUNDS-

FOR THE-YEAR ENDED Jt!NE 30, 2011 

Other 
General Governmental 

Fund Funds 
Revenues 

Taxes 
Insurance premium taxes $ 123,272 $ 
Property taxes 74,781 
Occupational taxes 35,730 
Franchise taxes 37,424 
Otlier 2,931 

Intergovernmental 50,223 
Public safety 90,754 
Operating grants 1,240 
Miscellaneous 235,669 9,900 
Interest 275 74 

Total Revenues 652,299 9974 

Expencllitures 
Current 

General government 139,424 
Public streets 44,332 
Public safety 19,653 
Library 9,788 

Debt service 8,832 
Capital outlay 88,285 

Total Expenditures 310 314 

Excess {!!eficie11cy) of Revenues Over ExJ:!enditnres 341,985 9974 

Other Financing Sourc_es (Uses) 
Transfer~ in 36,851 4,873 
Transfers out (44,079) (37,891) 

Total oilier financing sources (uses) (7,228) (33,018) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 334,757 (23,044) 

F1mcll Balance - Beginning 259,681 170 111 

Fnndl Balance - Ending $ 594,438 $ 147 067 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 123,272 
74,781 
35,730 
37,424 

2,931 
50,223 
90,754 

1,240 
245,569 

349 
662,273 

139,424 
44,332 
19,653 
9,788 
8,832 

88,285 
310 314 

351,959 

41,724 
(81,97Q) 
(40,242) 

311,713 

429,792 

$ 741,505 



CITY OF NORTONVILLE, KENTUCKY 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT·OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN.FUND BALANCE OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 1'0 l'HESTATEMENTOF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR EN])ED JuNE 30, 2017. 

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $ 311,713 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because: 

The net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources are an obligation of the City not payable from current year 
resources and not reported as an expenditure of the current year. In the 
Statement of Activities, these costs represent (expenses)/recovery in 
the current year. 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in 
the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated 
over their estimated useful lives: 

Expenditures for capital assets 
Less net book value of asset disposal 

· Less current year depreciation 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to 
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long­
. term debt consumes the current financial resources of 
· governmental funds. · Neither transaction, however, has any effect 
on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of loan 
costs when debt is first issued, whereas the amounts are deferred 
and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net 
effect of these differences in the treatment of longaterm debt and 
related items. 

Changes in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

See accompanying notes tiJ financial statements, 
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~ -,,,. Cl!TY OF NORTONVILLE, KEN'lfUCKY 
I 

STATEMENT OF REVE~~~~~~i!:JRES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

·-·) FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

. ' Variance with I 

l 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amouuts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (N eg;ative) 

! Revenues 
Taxes 

·1 Insurance premium taxes $ $ $ 123,272 $ 123,272 
i Property taxes 354,200 354,200 74,781 (279,419) 

"') Occupatioual taxes . 35,730 35,730 
Franchise taxes 37,424 37,424 

) Other 2,931 2,931 
Intergovernmental 50,223 50,223 
Public safety 90,754 90,754 
Operating grants 1,240 1,240 
Miscellaneous . 214,200 · 214,200 235,669 21,469 
Interest 275 275 

Total Revenues 568,400 568,400 652,299 83 899 

Expenditures 
Current 

General government 260,900 . 260,900 139,424 121,476 
Public safety 44,100 44,100 19,653 24,447 
Public streets 62,000 62,000 44,332 17,668 
Library 12,700 12,700 9,788 2,912. 

Debt.service 8,832 (8,832) 
Capital outlay 88,285 (88,285) 

Total Expenditures 379 700 379 700; 310,314 69 386 

Excess {!!eficiency} of Revenues Over Exl!enditures 188,700 188,700 34i,985 153,285 

Other Financing Sources (!lses) 
Transfers out - (44,079) (44,079) 

) 
Transfers in 36,851 36 851 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (7,228) (7,228) 

Net Change in Fund Balance $ 188,700 $ 188,700 334,757 $ 146 057 

- j 
F1llmdl Balance - Beginning 259,681 

) 

Fund! Balance - Emling $ 594 438 

) 

__ ) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OFJ'IORTONVILLE, KENTUCKY 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2017 

Business-!)'Ee Activities 
Water Sewer Total 

ASSETS. 

Current Assets 
Cash equivalents $ 39,994 $ 26,166 $ 66,160 
Accounts receivable (net of allowance) 24,945 60,130 85,075 
Unbilled revenue 12,825 11,949 24,774 
Inventory 11,943 11,943 
Prepayments 837 2,133 2,970 
Restricted assets: 

Cash equivalents 85 775 282,296 368 071 
Total Current Assets 176 319 382,674 558,993 

Non-current Assets 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 2,367,348 4,060,543 6,427,891 

Total Assets 2,543,667 4,443,217 6,986,884 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Related to pensions 15 107 11,456 26,563 

LIAJIULI'fIES 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 6,423 10,453 16,876 
Accrued interest payable 16,634 50,581 67,215 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 3,604 2,907 6,511 
Due to other funds 30,000 30,000 
CustoU1er deposits 29,427 29,427 
Long-term debt due in one year 31,000 130,000 161,000 

Total Current Liabilities 87,088 223,941 311,029 

Non-cnrrent Liabilities 
Long-tenn debt due after one year (net of bond discount) 1,506,500 2,686,832 4,193,332 
Net pension liability 84,096 58,052 142,148 

Total Non-current Liabilities 1,590,596 2,744,884 4,335,480 

Total Liabilities 1,677,684 2,968,825 4,646,509 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Related to pensions 15 067 11 047 26 114 " 

NET POSITION j 

Net investment in capital assets 829,848 1,243,711 2,073,559 
Restricted for debt retirement 38,141 101,715 139,856 
Unrestricted (1,966) 129,375 127,409 

Total Net Position $ 866,023 $ 1,474,801 $2,340,824 
) 

I See accompanying notes to financial statements. .: 
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CITY OF NORTONVllLLE. KENTUCKY 
STATEMENJ'.OFilEVENUES. EXPENSES AN][)) 

CHANGES:i:N FUNDN"ETPOSITION 
· PROPIUET ARY FUN][J)S 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Business-type Activities 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for service 
Late fees · 
Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenses 

Depreciation 
Salaries and wages 
Contract service 
Utilities 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Chemicals 
Retirement 
Testing. 
Health benefits 
Miscellaneous 
Office supplies 
Payroll taxes 
Fuel and oil 
Postage 
Vehicle maintenance 
Telephone 
Professional 
Advertising 
Dues and subscriptions 
B!Ulk charges 
Supplies 
Uniforms 

Total Operating Expenses 

Income {Loss) from Operations 

Nonoperating Revenues <Expenses) 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 
Investment income 
Interest expense and fees 
Bad debts 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income {Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 
Capital contributions 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning 

Net Position - Ending 

Water Sewer Total 

$ 295,510 $ 
4,796 
1424 

301 730 

31,477 
59,148 
45,110 · 
37,019 
9,624 

15,989 
6,072 
6,538. 
4,041 
9,618 
6,173 
5,219 
5,016 
2,743 
2,139 
1,780 
2,438 
8,682 

533 
505 

17 
3 

150 
260,034 

41696 

(5,953) 
68 

(22,467) 

(28,352) 

13,344 
468,617 

5,321 
(3,427) 

483,855 

382,168 

3q,922 $ 
233,006 

546 928 

162,294 
47,766 
69,450 
53,922 
23,707 
23,715 
38,368 

4,532 
24,321 

6,488 
9,157 
2,858 
5,378 
2,833 
2,101 
1,112 
1,784 

12,170 
762 
504 
125 

54 
493 401 

53 527 

(42) 
47 

(131,586) 
(551) 

(132,132) 

(78,605) 

43,546 
(5,196) 

(40,255) 

1,515,056 

609,432 
237,802 

1 424 
848 658 

193,771 
106,914 
114,560 
90,941 
33,331 
39,704 
44,440 
11,070 
28,362 
16,106 
15,330 
8,077 

10,394 
5,576 
4,240 
2,892 
4,222 

20,852 
1,295 · 
1,009 

142 
3 

204 
753.435 

95,223 

(5,995) 
115 

(154,053) 
(551) 

(160,484) 

(65,261) 
468,617 
48,867 
(8,623) 

443,600 

1,897,224 

$ 866,023 $ 1,474,801 $ 2,340,824 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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tC:ITY OF NORTONVU.,LE. KENTUCKY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PR.Oll"!UETARY .FUNDS 
FOR. THE YEAR ENDED.· JlJNE 30, 2017 

Business-type Activities 

Cash Flows Front Ouerating Activities 
Cash received from customers 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments to employees for services 

Net Cash Provi\ied (Used) By Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Nonca11ital Financing Activities 
Net decrease (increase) in amounts due to/ from other funds 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Ca11ital and Related Financing Activities 
Proceeds from issuance of debt 
Principal paid on debt 
Contributed capital 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
Interest paid on debt 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing 
Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Income received on investments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Investing Activities 

Net Increase ffiecrease) in Cash Egnivalents 

Cash Eguivalents - Beginning of Year 

Cash Equivalents- End ofYear 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) 
By Ouerating Activities 

Operating income (loss) · 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided 

(used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease (increase) in receivables 
Decrease (increase) in inventory 
Decrease (increase) in prepayments 
Decrease (increase) in deferred outflows 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll and other expenses 
Increase (decrease)' in customer deposits 
Increase (decrease) in pension liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows · 

Net Cash Provid,d (Used) by Operating Activities 

Reconciliation of Total Cash 
Current Assets - Cash 
Restricted Assets - Cash 

Total Cash 

See accompanying notes to finan~ial statements. 
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Water 

$ 297,960 
(872,146) 
(58,638) 

{632,824) 

5,321 
{3,427) 
1 894 

1,250,000 
(786,267) 
697,811 

(471,080) 
{21,998) 

668,466 

68 
68 

37,604 

88,165 

$ 125,769 

$ 41,696 

31,477 

· (2,947) 
(1,711) 

717 
1,757 

(704,427) 
510 

(823) 
(14,140) 

15 067 
$ {632,824) 

$ 39,994 
85 775 

$ 125,769 

Sewer Total 

$ 534,064 $ 832,024 
(284,292) (1,156,438) 
(47,207) · (105,845) 
202,565 {430,259) 

30,000 30,000 
43,546 48,867 
{5,196) {8,623) 
68,350 70244 

1,250,000 
(124,656) (910,923) 

(697,811) 
(38,235) (509,315) 

{133,826) (155,824) 

{296,717) 371 749 

47 115 
47 115 

(25,755) 11,849 

334,217 422,382 

$ 308,462 $ 434,231 

$ 53,527 $ 95,223 

162,294 193,771 

(12,864) (15,811) 
(1,711) 

329 1,046 
491 2,248 

(2,451) (706,878) 
559 1,069 

(823) 
(10,367) (24,507) 
11 047 26 114 

$ 202,565 $ {430,259) 

$ 26,166 $ 66,160 
282,296 368,071 

$ 308,462 $ 434,231 

i 
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---''1 

' 

J 

) 

' } 

J 

1. 

CITY OF NORTONVILLE, JKENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Nortonville, Kentucky operates under a Mayor/Council form of government and 
provides the following services as authorized: public safety (fire), highway and streets, water and 
sewer utilities, cultural and recreation, public improvements, cemetery and general and 
administrative services. 

The accounting and reporting policies of the City relating to the funds included in the accompanying 
basic financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
ofAmericaapplicable to state. and local governments. Generally a.cc.epti;d aC.QQl!!ltingpri!wipM);; fQr 
local governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Bqard (GASB), the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in the publication entitled 
Audits of State and Lo.cal Governmental Units and by the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(when applicable). The City follows GASB pronouncements as codified under GASB 62. The 
more significant accounting policies of the City are described below: 

A. The Financial Reporting Entity 
The City of Nortonville, Kentucky is a municipal corporation governed by an elected six 
member council and mayor. The City has adhered to the standards set forth in GASE 
Statement No, 14 as amended by GASB ·statement No. 61 of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board in reporting the primary government (including blended component units), 
discretely presented component units, the reporting entity and related relationships with the 
City. 

lB. Basis of Presentation 
The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all activities of the City. The effect of interfund activity, 
within the governmental and business-type activities columns, has been removed from these 
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmentalrevenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to 
a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific program. Program revenues include I) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 
program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial! Statements 
The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate, funds in 
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements 
are presented for governmental and proprietary activities. 'These statements present each major 
fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-major funds are aggregated 
and presented in a single column. 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are 
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds is on sources, uses and balances of 
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CITY OF NORTONVILLE, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 

current financial resources. The City has presented the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund 
The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for 
all financial resources not accounted for in the other funds. All general tax revenues and 
other receipts that are not restricted by law or cgntractual agreement to some other fund 
are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital 
improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund. 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, 
financial position and cash flow. All assets and liabilities are included on the Statement of Net 
Position. The City has presented the following major proprietary funds: 

Water Fund 
The Water Fund is used to account for the provisioll of water services to the residents of 
the City and some county residents. Activities of the fund include administration, water 
treatment, and distribution infrastructure additions and maintenance. All fund costs are 
financed through charges to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if 
necessary to ensure the financial integrity of the fund. 

Sewer Fund 
The Sewer Fund is used to account for the provision of sewer services to the residents of 
the City. Activities of the fund include administration, wastewater collection, 
infrastructure additions and maintenance, and wastewater treatment activities. The fund 
accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, long-term debt principal 
and interest for sewer system debt. All fund costs are financed through charges to utility 
customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if necessary to ensure the financial 
integrity ofthe fund. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with .a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the costs of personnel and contractual 
service·s, supplies and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

C. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 
Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when 
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial 
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of 
the measurement focus applied. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to 
accrual; i.e. when they become both measurable and available. "Measurable" means the 
amount of the transaction can be .determined and "available" means colle,tible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period 
(usually 45 days). The City considers property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 
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CITY OF NORTONVILLE, KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 

days after year end. Franchise and insnrance premium taxes are considered available and are, 
therefore, recognized as revenues even though a portion of taxes may be collected in the 
subsequent year. Intergovernmental revenues received as reimbursements for specific purposes 
or projects are recognized based upon expenditures recorded. Expenditures are recorded when 
the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only 
when payment is due. 

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
The economic resources measurement focus means all assets and an liabilities (whether current 
or non-current) are included on the statement of net position. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned, including unbilled water and sewer services 
which are accrued. Expenses are recognized at the time tbe liability is incurred. 

N onexchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value 
in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, 
revenue froin property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. 
Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include: (I) timing 
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal 
year when use is first pennitted, (2) matching requirements, in which the City must provided 
local resources to. be used for a specified purpose, and (3) expenditure requirements, in which 
the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, 
revenues from nonexchange transactions must also be available before they can be recognized. 

II. Budgets 
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, special revenue, and proprietary 
funds. Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by a 
majority vote of the City Council. 

Budgets and budgeting procedures require that prior to June I of each year, the Mayor submits 
a proposed budget to the Council for the year commencing the following July I. The budget is 
prepared by fund, function and activity, and includes information on the past year; current year 
estimates and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year. The City Council holds public 
hearings to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to June 30 of each year, the City Council approves 

. the budget by majority vote. 

As required by Kentucky Revised Statutes (K.R.S.) 91A.030 (I), formal budgetary integration 
is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund, Special 
Revenue Funds, and Enterprise Funds. Total expenditures for a fund legally may not exceed 
the total appropriations as required by K.R.S. 91A.030 (13). All appropriations lapse at year-
end. · 

Budget amendments, as allowed by ordinance, require majority approval by the City Council. 
The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between accounts within any fund. 
However, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by a 
majority vote of the City Council. 
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CITY OF NORTONVl[LLE. KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2017 

JE. Cash and Investments 
Money market instruments and certificates of deposits are stated at cost or amortized cost, 
which approximates fair value. All other investment securities are stated at fair value. 

City ordinances authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government and its 
instrumentalities, mutual funds, and demand deposits. All investments must be purchased 
through local brokers/dealers or deposited with local financial institutions. In accordance with 
GASB Statement 31, quoted market price was used to determine the fair value of investments. 

, For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all cash in banks with stated 
maturities of three months or less or available for _withdrawal by City management to be cash 
and cash equivalents. 

F. Short-Term Interfuml Receivables/Payables 
During the course of operations numerous transactions occur between individual funds for 
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due 
from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance she,t. Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business0type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances", 

G. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for lITncollectible Accounts 
Accounts receivable are recorded in the Goveriunental and Business-type funds net of 
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts. An allowance for uncollectible accounts has 
been provided based on prior years' loss experiences as percentage of revenues billed. Based 
on past experience, management considers the allowance adequate to provide for any losses on 
collection of the June 30, 2017 accounts receivable, 

H. Inventory 
Inventory consists of materials and supplies, Inventory• is valued at average cost Inventories 
of .governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when 
purchased. 

I. Prepaid Items 
Payments mac!e to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2017 are 
recorded as prepaid items. Prepaid items recorded in the governmental funds are reflected as 
nonspendable fund balance . 

.I'. Restricted Assets 
The restricted funds have been handled in accordance with the provisions of the various 
enterprise fund revenue bond resolutions, loan agreements, or by state or federal laws and 

· regulations, When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. 
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CITY OF NORTONVILLE. KENTUCKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, "2017 

K. Deferred Outflows of Resources arnd Deferred faflqws of Resources 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows. This separate fiuancial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has one item 
that qualifies for reporting in this category. 

Deferred outflows related to pensions are reported in the government-wide and proprietary 
statement of net position. A deferred outflow from pensions results from City contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement date. This amount is deferreq and will be recognized as a 
reduction of net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2018. 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows 'of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows 
of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a futnre period(s) and so 
will not be recognized as in inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two 
items that qualify for reporting in this category. 

Deferred inflows related to property taxes are reported in the government-wide statement of net 
position and governmental balance sheet. A deferred inflow from property taxes results from 
property taxes receivable that are deferred and will be recognized as an inflow of resources in 
the period that the amounts become available. 

Deferred inflows related to pensions are reported in the government-wide statement and 
proprietary statement of net position. A deferred inflow fr6m pensions results from net 
differences between expected and actual earnings on pension plan investments. This amount is 
deferred and will be recognized as a reduction of pension expense over future periods, 

L. Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which inc.Jude property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets ( excluding 
those acquired prior to June 30, 2003), are reported in the applicable governmental or business­
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial 
statements for proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued at historical or estimated 
historical cost if actual historical is not available. Donated assets are valued at their fair market 
value on the date donated. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses. Renewals and 
betterments are capitalized. Interest has been capitalized during the construction period on 
property, plant and equipment. 

Assets capitalized, including infrastructure assets, have an original cost of $500 or more and 
over three years of useful life. Depreciation has been calculated on each class of depreciable 
property using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Description 
Buildings and infrastructure 
Utility plant, mains and lines 
Vehicles 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 
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CITY OF NORTONVILLE, KENTUCJKY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE30,2017 

M. Postemployment Benefits 
Postemployment benefits are those received by employees after termination of employment. 
The City provides no such benefits. 

N. Compensated Absences 
Employees of the City earn two weeks of paid leave per year after one year of service based on 
a calendar year. Unused vacation and sick days are not allowed to be carried over. Therefore, 
there are no compensated absences to be accrued in the financial statements. 

0. Unearned Revenne 
In the governmental funds, certain revenue transactions have been reported as unearned 
revenue. Revenue cannot be recognized until it has been earned and is available to finance 
expenditures of the current fiscal period. Revenue that is earned but not available is reported as 
a deferred inflow of resources until such time as the revenue becomes available. In the 
proprietary funds (and for the governmental activities in the govermnent-wide statements), 
unearned revenue is reported regardless of its availability. 

P. Bond Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs 
In the govenunent-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, bond 
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
effective-interest method and are reported as deferred amounts from refunding debt. Issuance 
costs are reported as expenses. 

Q, Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations 
All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements ancl the proprietary fund financial statements as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position. 

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that once incurred are paid in a 
timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the 
fund. However, compensated absences and contractually required pension contributions that 
will be paid from governfuental funds ate reported as a liability in the fund financial statements 
only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Bonds, capital leases, 
and long-tenu loans are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due. 

R. Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses 
Substantially all governmental fund revenues (including occupational and insurance premium 
taxes, franchise fees, and licenses) are accrued. Property taxes are generally billed and 
collected within the same period in which the taxes are levied. In addition, revenue from 
Federal and State reimbursement type grants for which eligibility requirements have been met 
have been accrued and recognized as revenues of the period. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by !lie City. 
Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred except for the following, 
which are permitted by generally accepted accounting principles. General obligation long-term 
debt principal and interest, compensated absences, pension and other benefits, and other long­
tenu liabilities are reported only when due. 

Operating revenues for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and 
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CITY OF .NORTONVIJLJLE, KENTUCKY 
.NOTES TO FI.NA.NCIAJL §TATJEMENT§ 

JUNE 30, 21117 

producing and delivering goods and/or services. The principal operating revenue of the 
proprietary funds is receipts from customers. Operating expenses for these operations include 
all costs related to providing the service. These costs include salaries, contractual services, 
supplies, maintenance, depreciation, and administrative expenses. All other revenues and 
expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

§. foterfnnd Transactions 
Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. 
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made 
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in 
the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 
All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are 
reported as interfund transfers and are included in the results of operations of both 

1 governmental and proprietary funds. Any residnal balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements as "internal balances." 

T. Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the. financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

U. Net Position 
In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three 
components. 

• Net investment in capital assets - Capital assets, net of,accumnlated depreciation and 
reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets net of unspent financing 
proceeds. 

• Restricted net position - Net position with constraints placed on their use that are 
either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of 
other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

• Unrestricted net position - All other net position that does not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

In governmental fund financial statements, equity is classified as fund balance and is displayed 
in up to five components based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to observe 
constraints imposed on the use of fund resources. These components are as follows: 

e Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in spendable form {such as 
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CITY OF NORTONV][LJLE, KENTUCKY 
NOTES 'fO FJ:NANCKAJL S'fATEMEN'JS 

JUNE 30, 2017 

inventory or prepaid expenses) or are required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted! funtd lbahmce - amounts constrai.ned to specific purposes by their providers 
(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through 
constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation. 

Committed fumd balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City itself, 
using its highest level of decision-making authority. To be reported as committed, 
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City takes the same highest 
level action to remove or change the constraint. 

• Assigned fund !balance - amounts the City intends to use for a specific· purpose, Intent 

can be expressed by the City or by an official or body to which the City delegates the 
authority, 

• Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive 
amouots are reported only in the general fuod. 

The City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage 
of an ordinance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until 
a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation. 
Assigned fund balance is established by the City Council through adoption or amendment of 
the budget as intended for a specific purpose (such as the purchase of fixed assets, construction, 
debt service, or for other purposes). 

The City would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed resources, 
and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to 
selectively spend Unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds. 

V. Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 74 
GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than 
Pension Plans, was issued in June 2015, The provisions of this statement are effective for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2016. This Statement replaces Statements No. 43 and 57, and 
modifies No. 2.5 and No. 50. The City currently has no activity that fits this criteria. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 77 
GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, was issued in August 2015. The 
provisions of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. This 
statement requires disclosure of information necessary to assess how tax abatements affect 
financial position and results of operations. The City currently has no activity that fits this 
criteria. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 78 
GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined 
Benefit Pension P,lans, was issued in December 2015. The provisions of this Statement are 
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. This Statement amends the scope and 
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CITY OF NOR1'ONVJ[LLE, KENTUCKY 
NOTES 1'0 FINANCIAL STATJEMENTS 

JUNE30, 2017 

applicability of Statement 68 to exclude pensions provided to employees of state or local 
governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
that (I) is not a state or local governmental pension plan, (2) is used to provide defined benefit 
pensions both to employees of state or local governmental employers aud to employees of 
employers that are not state or local govermnental employers, and (3) has no predominant state 
or local governmental employer ( either individually or collectively with other state or local 
governmental employers that provide pensions through the pension plan). This Statement 
establishes requirements for recognition and measurement of pension expense, expenditures, 
and liabilities; note disclosures; and required supplementary information for pensions that have 
the characteristics described above. The City currently provides no postemployment benefits. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 79 
GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participr:ints, was issued 
in December 20 IS. The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2015. This statement establishes criteria for an external investment pool to 
qualify for making the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost for financial 
reporting purposes. The City currently has no activity that fits this criteria. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 80 
GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units-an amendment 
ofGASB Statement No. 14, was issued in January 2016. The provisions of this Statement are 
effective for periods beginning after June IS, 2016. This statement requires blending of a 
component unit incorpotated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is 
the sole corporate member. The 6ity currently has no activity that fits this criteria. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement. No. 82 
GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues-an amendmentofGASBStatements No. 67, No. 68, 
and No. 73, was issued in March 2016. The provisions of this Statement are effective for 
periods beginning after June IS, 2016. This statement clarifies certain issues that have been 
raised with previous pronouncements. 

Receillt Accouilltiillg Pronouncemeillts 
As of June 30, 2017, the GASB has issued the following statements not yet required to be 
adopted by the City. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions, was issued in June 2015. The provisions of this Statement are effective 
for periods beginning after June IS, 2017. This Statement replaces Statements No. 45 and 57. 
The estimated unfunded liability to be recognized is $46,439. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 81 
GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, was issued in March 2016. 
The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2016. 
This statement provides. recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a 
govermnent is a beneficiary of a split interest agreement. The City's management has not yet 
determined the effect this statement will have on the financial statements. 
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Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83 
GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, was issued in November 2016. 
The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. This 
statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability 
and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs. This statement requires that 
recognition occur when the liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable. The City's 
management has not yet determined the effect this statement will have on the financial 
statements. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84 
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, was issued in January 2017. The provisions of 
this Statement are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. This statement 
improves guidance regarding. the identification .of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The City's 
management has not yet determined the effect this statement will have on the financial 
statements. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No .. 85 
GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, was is.sued in February 2017. The provisions of this 
Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. This statement addresses 
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain 
GASB Statements. The City's management has not yet determined the effect this statement will 
have on the financial statements. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 86 
GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues, was issued in May 2017. The 
provisions of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. This 
statement provides guidance in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance qefeasance 
of debt and for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements 
for debt that is defeased in substance. The City's management has not yet determined the effect 
this statement will have on the financial statements. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87 
· GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, was issued in June 2017 .. The provisions of this Statement 

are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. This statement provides 
recognition and measurement guidance for leases by govenunents. The City's management has 
not yet determined the effect this statement wi.11 have oil the financial statements. 

W. Subsequent Events 
The City has evaluated subsequent events through December 6, 2019, the date which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 

2. LEGAL COMPLIANCE- BOOGETS 

The City did not adopt a new budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017, per K.R.S. 91A.030 
the prior year budget remains in effect. Therefore the City operated under the last adopted budget 
under Ordinance 2016-01 which was adopted on March 17, 2016. · 

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Individual Funds 
The following funds had an excess of actual expenditures and other financing uses over budget for 
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the year ended June 30, 2017: 
Water Fund 
Sewer Fund 

$ 60,954 
269,734 

The expenditures were due mainly to budgeting practices. Fund equity and other financial sources 
were sufficient to offset the over expenditures. Annual budgets are adopted for the General Fund, 
and all Proprietary Funds. 

Operating Deficit 
The following funds had operations that resulted in a current year deficit of revenue under 
expenditures and other financing uses resulting in a corresponding reduction of fund balance. These 
deficits were funded by available resources at the beginning of the year. 

Sewer Fund $ 
Municipal Aid Fund $ 

40,255 
30,588 

3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Statement of Net Position Cash Presentation 
The captions on the statement of net position for cash, investments, and restricted assets enumerated 
as to deposits and investments and the amounts in total are as follows: 

Cash equivalents 
Restricted assets: 

Cash equivalents 
Total 

A. Deposits 

$ 

$ 

Primary 
Government 

Deposits 
581,760 $ 

368,071 
949 831 $ 

Total 
581,760 

368 071 
949 831 

At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's cash equivalents was $949,831 including cash on 
hand of $750. The bank balance was $964,870, of which $505,878 was covered by federal 
depository insurance and $458,992 was covered by collateral held by the pledging financial 
institution's agent or trust department in the City's name. 

R Investments 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse 
interest rate changes. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. 

Credit Risk 
Cre.dit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that a govermuent will not be 
able to recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
an outside party if the counterparty to the transaction fails. 
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Conc~ntration of Credit Risk 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attrib11ted to the magnitude of the City's 
investment in a single issuer. The City does not place any limits on the amount that may be 
invested with one issuer. 

Identification 
At June 30, 2017 the City had no investments. 

4. PROPERTY TAXES 

The City bills and collects its own property taxes. The City elects to use the annual property 
assessment prepared by Hopkins County as its base to apply the property tax rate. According to 
Kentucky Revised Statutes, the assessment date for the City must conform to the assessment date of 
Hopkins County, and the annual increase in the property tax levy cannot exceed 4%. For the year 
ending June 30, 2017, taxes were levied on October 1, 2016 and payable on December 31, 2016. 
The tax rate was 23.5 cents per $100 of assessed valuation of real property; 22.9 cents per $100 of 
assessed valuation of vehicles and watercraft, and 34.0 ceiits per $100 of assessed valuation of 
tangible property. Enforceable liens on delinquent property tax bills attach to the property when 
filed by the City by August JI of each year. City property tax revenues are recognized when levied 
to the extent that they result in current receivables in accordance with GASB Statement 1, "Revenue 
Recognition - Property Taxes." 
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i 5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Governmental Activities 
--,.) A summary of capital assets for governmental activities at June 30, 2017 follows: 

. ' 
! Begipning Ending 

Governmental Activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

') 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land $ 45 000 $ $ $ 45,000 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 45 000 45 000 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 98,763 98,763 

Impn;,vements 625,811 1,585 (11,400) 615,996 

Machinery and equipment 299,957 15,212 (5,286) 309,883 

Vehicles 197,300 197,300 

i 
Police and fire equipment 436,978 71,488 (7,464) 501,002 

Infrastructure 42 557 42,557 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 1,701,366 88,285 (24,150) 1,765,501 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (49,226) (2,484) (51,710) 

Improvements (171,lU) (19,448) 4,655 (185,904) 

Machinery and equipment (270,383) (5,852) 5,252 (270,983) 

Vehicles (140,871) (9,500) (150,371) 

Police and fire equipment (296,818) (28,235) 7,464 (317,589) 

Infrastructure (15,778) (1,419) (17,197) 

Total accumulated depreciation (944,187) (66,938) 17 371 (993,754) 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 757 179 21 347 (6,779) 771747 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 802,179 $ 21 347 $ (6,779) $ 816,747 

) 
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B111siness-type Activities 
A summary of capital assets for business-type activities at June 30, 2017 follows: 

Business-type Activities 
Construction in progress 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Water plant 
Buildings, tanks, etc. 
Vehicles 
Water equipment 
Sewer plant 
Sewer equipment 
Regional sewer project 
Total capital assets, being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Water plant 
Buildings, tanks, etc. 
Vehicles 
Water equipment 
Sewer plant 
Sewer equipment 
Regional sewer project 
Total accumulated der,reciation 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Increases Decreases 
Beginning 
Balance 

$ 1,499,401 
1,499,401 

$ 468 960 $~-=---
468 960 

$ 916,106 $ 
160,563 
21,210 
68,473 

3,156,095 
264,593 

5,200,367 
9 787 407 

(528,142) 
(146,152) 
(21,210) 
(36,551) 

(3,003,392) 
(146,100) 

(1,286,919) 
(5,168,466) 

4,618,941 

2,120 
5,511 

32,724 

40 355 

(24,399) 
-(877) 

(6,201) 
(14,279) 
(17,968) 

(130,047) 
(193.771) 

(153,416) 

$ 

(12,022) 
(1,205) 
(5,143) 

(18,370) 

6,070 
1,197 
5,108 

12,375 

(5,995) 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 1.968,361 
1.968,361 

$ 916,106 
160,563 
21,210 
58,571 

3,160,401 
292,174 

5,200,367 
9,809,392 

(552,541) 
(147,029) 
(21,210) 
(36,682) 

(3,016,474) 
(158,960) 

(1,416,966) 
(5,349.862) 

4.459.530 

Business-type activities capital assets., net $ 6,118,342 $ 315 544 $ /5.995) $ 6.427,891 

Depreciation expense was not allocated to governmental functions. It appears on the Statement of 
Activities as depreciation on a separate line. 

6. RESTRICTED NET POSITION 
Certain assets relating to long term debt, which are restricted as described in Note 8 are as follows at 
June 30, 2017: 

Bond and Interest Redemption Accounts: 
Debt Requirement Restricted Assets 

Bond Sinking Reserve 
Ky Bond Debt Service Fund 

Total 

Current portion of Debt Requirements 
Revenue bonds and debt payable 
Accrued interest payable 

Total 
Net Position Restricted for Debt Service 
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Water Sewer 
$ 85,775 $ 157,753 

124 543 
$ 85 775 $ 282,296. 

$ 31,000 $ 130,000 
16 634 50 581 
47 634 180 581 

$ 38 141 $=~1~01t,i,7f,;\1;;,5 
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rusK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; iajuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the year ended 
June 30, 2017, the City contracted with commercial insurance carriers for coverage of all the risks 
mentioned above. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance 
coverage in any of the past 3 years. There were no significant reductions in coverages during the 
past 3 years. 

8. GOVERNMENT WIDE ACTMTIBS DEBT 

Capital Lease Obligation 
On May 9, 2014, the City entered into a lease agreement with US Bank Equipment Finance for a fire 

· truck. The lease agreement calls for annual lease payments of $8,832 beginning May 9, 2015 and 
concluding on May 9, 2019. At the conclusion of the lease, legal ovmership of the fire truck vests in 
the City. . The lease qualifies as a capital fmancing lease with the cost. of the asset and the net 
present value of the capital lease obligation reflected in these financial statements. The historical 
cost and accumulated depreciation for the fire truck acquired was $50,000 and $16,250, respectively 
as of June, 30, 2017. 

1980 Revenue Bond Payable . 
On November 6, 1981, the City authorized and provided for issuance and sale of $1,058,000 
principal amount of City of Nortonville, Kentucky Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1980. The 
purpose of the issuance was for financing the cost of the construction of a project consisting of the 
acquisition and construction of a new sewer system for the City. The bonds bear interest at 5% per 
annum. Annual principal payments are due on January 1 and semi-annual interest payments on 
January 1 and July I. 

1995 Revenue Bond Payable 
On February 29, 1996, the City authorized and provided for the issuance and sale of $427,000 
principal amount of City of Nortonville, Kentucky Waterworks and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 
1995. The purpose of the issuance was for financing the cost of the construction of extensions, 
additions, and improvements to the existing combined and consolidated waterworks and sewer 
system. The bonds bear interest at 4.5% per annum. Annual principal payments are due on January 
I and semi-annual interest payments on January 1 anc;l July I. 

2013 Revenue Bond Payable 
On July 30, 2013, the City authorized and provided for the issuance and sale of$2,990,000 principal 
amount of City of Nortonville, Kentucky Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2013. The purpose of the 
issuance was for refinancing the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Note Payable issued for prior 
sewer system improvements. The bonds bear interest at 2.0% - 4.625% per annum. Annual 
principal payments are due on February I and semi-annual interest payments on February 1 and 
August I. 

2016 Revenue Boud Payable 
On November 17, 2015, the City authorized and provided for the issuance and sale of $1,250,000 
principal amount of City of Nortonville, Kentucky Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2016. The 
purpose of the issuance was for financing the cost of the construction of extensions, additions and 
improvements to the existing combined and consolidated 'waterworks and sewer system. The bonds 
bear interest at a rate not to exceed 2.50% per annum. Annual principal payments are due on 
January 1 and semi-annual interest payments on January I and July I. 
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Water Fund - Bond AnticiJ:!ation Loan 
In July 2016, the City issued a bond anticipation loan in the amount of $1,250,000 with United 
States Department of Agriculture (USDA) to finance additions to the water system. As of June 30, 
2016, the City had drawn $776,267 of the funds available on this loan. The loan was paid in full 
with bond sale proceeds during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 .. 

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Beginning Ending Due in One 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Year 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital Lease Obligation $ 25,212 $ $ . 8 195 $ 17 017 $ 8 402 
Total Govermnental Activities 

Business•!)'!le Activities: 
25,212 8 195 17 017 8 402 

1980 Revenue Bonds Payable 224,000 52,000 172,000 55,000 
1995 Revenue Bonds Payable 297,500 10,000 287,500 11,000 
2013 Revenue Bonds Payable 2,773,750 75,000 2,698,750 77,083 
2016 Revenue Bonds Payable 1,250,000 1,250,000 20,000 
Less Unamortized Bond Discount (56,262) 2,344 (53,918) 
Bond Anticipation Loan 776 267 776 267 
Total Business-type Activities 4,015,255 1,250,000 915 611 4,354,332 163,083 

Total Primary Government $ 4,040,467 $ 1,250,000 $ 923,806 $ 4,371,349 $ 171485 

Maturities of the lease obligation as of June 30, 2017 are: 

Fiscal 
Year Princi2al Interest Total 
2018 $ 8,402 $ 430 $ 8,832 
2019 8 615 217 8 832 

Total $ 17 017 $ 647 $ 17 664 

Annual principal and interest requirements of the revenue bonds payable as of June 30, 20 I Tare: 

Fiscal 
Year Princi2al Interest Total 
2018 $ 163,083 $ 151,988 $ 315,071 
2019 170,583 146,105 316,688 
2020 178,000 139,964 317,964 
2021 120,583 133,533 254,116 
2022 125,000 130,031 255,031 

2023-27 691,333 576,820 1,268,153 
2028-32 838,500 388,513 1,227,013 
2033-37 991,583 309,906 . 1,301,489 
2038-42 565,085 111,990 677,075 
2043-47 195,000 39,731 234,731 
2048-52 221,000 23,067 244,067 
2053-57 148,500 4924 153 424 

Total $ 4,408,250 $ 2,156,572 $ 6,564,822 
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9. LITIGATION, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMl['fMENTS 

Litigation 
The City initiated City ofNortonville vs City ofWhite Plains in early 2017 relating to the City of 
White Plains' failure to pay the new wholesale sanitary sewer rate enacted by the Nortonville City 
Council on June 30,2016. The litigation participated in a binding arbitration hearing on November 
7 and November 8, 2019, and reached a tentative agreement to resolve the issue. The settlement 
agreement inpludes the City of White Plains paying a compromised sum of $55,000 to the City of 
Nortonville for outstanding wholesale sanitary sewer treatment invoices. The parties agree to enter 
into a new contract for wholesale sanitary sewer treatment services and resolve the pending 
litigation. The proposed date to enter into the new contract is December I, 2019. 

The City is unaware of any other pending. or threatened litigation, or claims. 

Contingencies 
The City participates in a number of federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are 
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The audits of these 
programs for or including the year ended June 30, 2017, may not yet have been conducted. 

Commitments 
At June 30, 2017 the City had did not have any committed funds. 

1(). MA.TOR CUSTOMER 

Sewer Treatment Services 
In November, 1994, the City entered into a long-term contract to provide sewer treatment services to 
the City of Mortons Gap. The term of the agreement is for 45 years, with amendments possible 
upon the consent of b\Jth parties. The City bills the City of Mortons Gap monthly for the sewer 
treatment. Total sales to the City of Mortons Gap for the year ended June 30, 2017, were $111,502. 
This amount constitutes 36% of the total revenue. 

In December, 1996, the City entered into a long-term contract to provide sewer treatment services to 
the Ciiy of White Plains. The term of the agreement is for 45 years, with amendments possible upon 
the consent of both parties. The City bills the City of White Plains monthly for the sewer treatment. 
Total sales to the City of White Plains for the year ended June 30, 2017, were $69,744. This amount 
constitutes 23% of the total revenue. 

11. EMPLOYEE'S RE'fl:REMENTJPLAN 

County Employees' Retirement System 
General Information about the Pension JPlan . 
Plan Description 
The City of Nortonville, Kentucky is a participant in the County Employees Retirement System 
(CERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
Kentucky Retirement ~ystems Board of Trustees (KRS Board) established pursuant to Kentucky 
Revised Statutes (KRS) Section 78.630. KRS Section 61.645 grants the authority to establish and 
amend the benefit terms to the KRS Board. All City employees participating in the CERS are 
classified as having either a hazardous or nonhazardous position for the purpose of KRS 61.592. 
Kentucky Retirement Systems issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report 
containing CERS information that can be obtained at https://kyret.ky.gov. 

-29 -



CITY OJF NORTONVILLE, KENTUCKY 
NOTE§ TO JFlNANICIAL STATEMENT§ 

JUNE 30, 2017 

Benefits Provided 
Non-hazardous members· 

Tier I Participation Date Prior to September I, 2008 
Unreduced retirement 27 years ofservice or 65 years old 
Reduced retirement Minimum 5 years of service and 55 years old 

Minimum 25 vears of service and anv age 
Tier2 Participation Date September 1, 2008 and December 31, 2013 

Unreduced retirement Minimum 5 years of service and 65 years old 
Age of 57 or older and sum of service years plus age equal 87 

Reduced retirement Minimum IO vears of service and 60 vears old 
Tier3 Participation Date After December 31, 2013 

Unreduced retirement Minimum 5 years of service and 65 years old 
Age of 57 or older and sum of service years plus age equal 87 

Reduced retirement Not available 
If a member's employment is terminated before the member is eligible for any other benefits under 
CERS, the member shall receive a refund of his/her member contributions with credited interest at 3 
percent compounded annually through June 30, 1981, 6 percent thereafter through June 30, 1986, 
and 4 percent thereafter. 

Contributions 
Covered employees who began participation before September 1, 2008 are required by state statute 
to contribute 5 percent of their salary to CERS. Members occupying hazardous positions, as defined 
by state statute, contribute 8 percent of their salary to CERS. Covered employees who began 
participation on or after September l, 2008 are required by state statute to contribute 6 percent of 
their salary to CERS. Members occupying hazardous positions, as defined by state statute, 
contribute 9 percent of their salary to CERS. The additional 1 percent is deposited to ao account 
created for the payment of health insurance benefits under 26 US.C Section 40l(h) in the Pension 
Fund. 

Covered employees who began participation on or after January 1, 2014 are required to contribute to 
the Cash Balance Piao. The Ca.sh Balance Plan is known as a hybrid plan because it has 
characteristics of both a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. Covered employees in 
the plan contribute a set percentage of their salary each month to their own account. Employee 
contribution rates are 5 percent for those classified as nonhazardous and 8 percent for those 
classified as hazardous and I percent to the health insurance fund which is not credited to the 
employee's account and is not refundable. The employer contribution rate is set annually by the KRS 
Board based on ao actuarial valuation. The employer contributes a set percentage of the employee's 
salary. Each month, when employer contributions are received,. an employer pay credit is deposited 
to the employee's account equal to 4 percent for those classified as nonhazardous. The employer pay 
credit represents a portion of the total employer contribution. 

Employers are required by state statute (KRS 78.545) to contribute the remaining amounts necessary 
to pay benefits when due. These contribution rates are detennined by the KRS Board annually 
based upon actuarial valuations. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the employer contribution rate 
was I 8.68% of members' nonhazardous salaries. The employer contribution when combined with 
employee contributions are expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City's employer 
CERS contributions for the year ended December 6, 2019 were $10,507. 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
At June 30, 2017, the City reported a net pension liability of $186,501 for its proportionate share of 
the CERS net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The City's proportion df the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to CERS relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined .. At June 30, 2016, the City's 
proportion was .003 79 percent for nonhazar.dous classified employees. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $14,571. At June, 30, 
2017, the City reported deterred outflows of resources and deferred inflows ofresources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 
Net difference . between expected and actual 
experience $ 

Net difference between projected and actual 
investment earnings 

Change of assumptions 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
employer contributions and share of contributions 

814 $ 

17,533 

9,880 

712 35,526 

$ 

Total 

814 

17,533 

9,880 

(34,814) 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 7 847 7 847 
Total $ 36 786 $ 35,526 $.===11 =26=0 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
The $7,847 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City's 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2018. Contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date have a zero years amortization period. 

As of June 30, 2017, $28,939 was recognized as deferred outflows of resources resulting from a) 
difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, b) changes of 
assumptions, c) differences between expected and actual experience (actuarial gains and losses), and 
d) contributions subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts are being amortized as 
follows: 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Total 

Years Ending 
June 30, 2018 
June 30, 2019 
June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

Amortization 
(Accretion) 

$ (12,746) 
(4,688) 
6,954 
3 893 

$ (6,587) 
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The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Actual cost method Entrv age 
Amortization method Level Percentage of payroll, closed 
Remaining amortization period 27 vears 
Asset valuation method 5 vear smoothed market 
Inflation 3 .25 Percent 
Salarv increases 4.00 Percent, average, including inflation 
Investment rate of return 7.50 percent, net . of pension . plan 

investment exoense including inflation 

The rates of mortality for the period after service retirement are according to the RP-2000 Combined 
Mortality Table for all retired employees and beneficiaries projected with Scale BB to 2013, The 
RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table set back 4 years is used for the period after disability 
retirement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2013. 

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies 
prepared every five years for the System. The most recent analysis, performed for the period 
covering fiscal years 2008 through 2013 is outlined in a report dated April 30, 2014. Several factors 
are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption including long term historical 
data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-normal distribution analysis in which best­
estimate ranges of expected future teal rates of return ( expected return, net of investment expense 
and inflation) were developed by the investment consultant for each major asset class. These ranges 
were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The 
capital market assumptions developed by the investment consultant are intended for use· over a 10-
year horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of return for funding pension plans 
which covers a longer timeframe. The assumption is intended to be a long term assumption and is 
not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation 
assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years. 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major class are 
summarized in the following table: · 

Asset Class 
Combined Equity 
Combined Fixed Income 
Real Return (Diversified Inflation Strategies) 
Real Estate 
Absolute Return (Diversified Hedge Funds) 
Private Equity 
Cash Equivalent 

Total 
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Target 
Allocation 

44% 
19% 
10 % 
5% 

10 % 
10 % 
2% 

100 % 

Long Tenn 
Expected 

Nominal Return 
5.40 % 
1.50 % 
3.50 % 
4.50 % 
4.25 % 
8.50 % 

_(0.25)% 
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The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the plan was 7.50 percent for both 
nonhazardous and hazardous. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that local employers would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of 
projected compensation over the remaining 27 year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability. The actuarial determined contribution rate is adjusted to reflect the phase in of 
anticipated gains on actuarial value of assets over the first four years of the projection period. 

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 
The following presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7 .50 percent, as 
well as what the plan's net position li11bility would be if it were cakulated using a dis.count rate that 
is one percentage point lower (6.50 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.50 percent) than the 
current rate (7.50 percent): 

1% Decrease 
(6.50%) 

Nonhazardous 
City's proportionate share of 
the net nension liabilitv $ 55 777 
Water & Sewer System's 
proportionate share of the net 
nension liabiJit-u $ 176,628 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Current 
Discount 

Rate (7.50%) 

$ 44,353 

$ 142,148 

1 % Increase 
/8.50%\ 

$ 35-315 

$ I 11,829 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately. 
issued comprehensive annual fmancial report issued by the Kentucky Retirement Systems and can 
be found at https://kyret.ky.gov. 

Payables to the Pension Plan 
At June, 30, 2017, the City owed $1,425 in contractually required employee. and employer 
contributions (retirement and health insurance) primarily for the month ended June 30, 2017. The 
obligation was paid within prescribed time limits. 

Postretirement Healthcare Benefits 
In addition to the pension benefits described above, the KRS provides postretirement healthcare 
benefits through the Kentucky Retirement Systems Insurance Fund (Insurance Fund). The Insurance 
Fund was established to provide hospital and medical insurance for those receiving benefits from the 
Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS), the County Employees Retirement System 
(CERS), and the State Police Retirement System (SPRS). The Insurance Fund pays a prescribed 
contribution for whole or partial payment of required premiums to purchase hospital and medical 
insurance. For the year ended June 30, 2016 (the date of the latest available information), insurance 
premiums withheld from benefit payments for those receiving benefits from CERS were 
approximately $22,600,000 and $1,700,000 for nonhazardous and hazardous, respectively. The 
Insurance Fund pays the same proportion of hospital and medical insurance premiums for the spouse 
and dependents ofretired hazardous employees killed in the line of duty. As of June 30, 2016, the 
Insurance Fund had 113,280 retirees and beneficiaries for whom benefits were available. 
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The amount of contributions paid by the Insurance Fund is based on years of service. For 
employees 'participating prior to July 1, 2003, years of service and respective percentages of the 
maximum contribution are shown below: 

Years of Service 
20 or more 
15 - 19 
10- 14 
4-9 
Less than 4 

% Paid by Insurance Fund 
100% 
75% 
50% 
25% 
0% 

As a result of House Bill 290 (2004 Kentucky General Assembly), medical insurance benefits are 
calculated differently for those who began participating on or after July I, 2003. Once employees 
reach· a minimum vesting period of ten years, nonhazardous employees whose participation began 
on, or after, July I, 2003 earn $15 per month for insurance benefits at retirement for every year of 
earned service without regard to a maximum dollar amount. Hazardous employees whose 
participation began on or after July l, 2003 earn $15 per month for insurance benefits at retirement 
fot every year of earned service without regard to a maximum dollar amount. Upon death of a 
hazardous employee, the employee's spouse receives $10 per month for insurance benefits for each 
year of the deceased employee's earned hazardous service. This dollar amount is subject to 
adjustment armually based on the retiree cost of living adjustment (COLA), which is updated 
annually due to changes in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for all urban consumers. This benefit is 
not protected under the inviolable contract provisions of Kentucky Revised Statutes 16.652, 61.692 
and 78.852. The Kentucky General Assembly reserves the right to suspend or reduce this benefit if, 
in its judgment, the welfare of the Commonwealth so demands. 

In prior years, the employer's required medical insurance contribution rate was being increased 
annually by a percentage that would result in advance-funding the medical liability on an actuarially 
determined basis using the entry age normal method within a 20 year period measured. from 1987. 
In November 1992, the Board adopted a fixed percentage rate and suspended future increases under 
the current medical premium funding policy until the next experience study could be performed. In 
May 1996, the KRS Board adopted a policy to increase the insurance contribution rate by the 
amount needed to achieve the target rate for full entry age normal funding within 20 years. 

The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. As of June 30, 2017, 2016, and 
2015, the City's required contribution rate was 4.73%, 4.64%, and 4.92%, respectively, of armual 
covered payroll for non-hazardous employees. The contribution requirements of plan members and 
the City are established and may be. amended by the Kentucky Retirement Systems Board of 
Trustees. Contributions to the Insurance Fund from the City were $2,661, $4,139, and $5,850 for the 
years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively. · 

On August 6, 2012, the KRS Board voted to cease self-funding of healthcare benefits for most 
Medicare eligible retirees. The Board elected to contract with Humana Insurance Company to 
provide healthcare benefits to retirees through a fully insured Medicare Advantage Plan. The 
Humana Medicare Advantage Plan became effective January I, 2013. · 

12. TRANSFERS AND llJ'ilTERFUND RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE BALANCES . 

Transfers and payments within the reporting entity are substantially for the purposes of subsidizing 
operating functions, funding capital projects and asset acquisitions, or maintaining debt service on a 
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routine basis. Resources are accumulated in a fund or component unit to support and simplify the 
administration of various projects or programs. 

Generally, outstanding balances between funds reported as "due to/from other funds" include 
outstanding charges by one fund to another for services or goods and other miscellaneous 
receivables/payables between funds. Activity between funds that are representative of 
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are described as "due 
to/from other funds" (i.e. the. current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" 
(i.e. the non-current portion ofinterfund loans). 

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities 
are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." Similar activities 
in which a component unit is a party are captioned as "receivabl.es/payables" for both the cunent 
and non-current portions between a component unit and the primary government Balances to which 
a fiduciary fund is a party are treated as "external" receivables and payables. 

Primary government interfund receivable/payable balances for operating expenses at June 30, 2017 
were: 

General Fund $ 30,000 $ 
Proprietary Funds 

Sewer Enterprise Fund 30 000 
. Total $ 30 000 $ 30,000 

Primary government transfers at June 30, 2017 were: 

Transfers Transfers 
In Out 

Governmental Funds 
General Fund $ 36,851 $ 44,079 

Special Revenue Funds 
. Municipal Road Aid 3,814 35,571 

Cemetery Maintenance Fund 2,320 
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 1,060 

· Proprietary Funds· 
Sewer Enterprise Fund 43,546 5,196 

W ~ter Enterprise Fund 5,322 3 427 

Total $ 90 593 $ 90 593 
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CITY OF NORTONVILLE, KENTUCKY 
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOE THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Nonhazardous 
City's proportion of the net pension 
liability (asset) 

City's proportion of the net pension 
liability (asset) 

City's covered employee.payroll 

City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered employee 
payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension 
liabiHty (2) 

County Employees Retirement System 

Last Ten Fiscal! Years (1) 

June 30, 20Hi Jmume 30, 2015 

0.003788 % 0.005113 % 

$ 186,501 $ 219,858 $ 

$ 56,250 $ 89,228 $ 

331.56 % 246.40 % 

55.50 % 59.97 % 

(1) The amounts presented for the fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30. 
(2) This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the CERS plan. 

Ju:me 30, 2014 Jume 30, 2013 

0.005068 % 0.005068 % 

164,000 $ 186,050 

143,373 $ 98,116 

114.39 % 189.62 % 

66.80 % 61.22 % 

Note: This schedule is presented to ilfostrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a 10 year trend is compiled, the City will 
present information for those years for which information is· aVai13.ble. 
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Nonhazardous 
Contractually required contributions -

Contributions in relation to the 
contractuall)' required contributions 

Contribution·deficiency (excess) 

City's covered employee payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll 

CITY OF NORTONVJ[LLJE, KENTUCKY 
SCHEDULJE OF .PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THJE YEAR ENDED JUNE_~(),_ 20]. 7 

Cowmfy Employees Reth·eme,.t.Systemm 

Last Te" lFis<1:aR Years 

J1rn.e 301 21117 Ju"e 301 2016 Jm1e 3012015 

$ 7;847 $ 11,082 $ 15,160 $ 

Julle 301 2014 Ju,.e301 2013 

19,699 $ 12,382 

---~7 ~84~7 11 082 15 160 19 692 12,382 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 
===== 

$ 56,250 $ 89,228 $ 118,906 $ 143,373 $ 98,116 

13.95 % 12.42 % 12.75 % 13.74 % 12.62 % 

Note: This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a 10 year trend is compiled, the City will present 
information for those years for which information is available. 

-37 -

\.,., ~--· '-~· •o-~., ¼,-,, ',.-,. '-,.,,. -~¥/ ,-,' -~·' .,<c,~ -.·, "_,,._ 



J 

} 

CITY OF NORTONVILLE, KJEN1UCKY 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGE§ IN BENEFITS AND ASSUMPTION§ 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Changes of Benefit Terms: 

2015: None 

Changes of Assumptions: 

The following changes were made by the Kentucky Legislature and reflected in the valuation performed 
as of June 30, listed below: 

2015: 
The assumed investment rate ofreturn was decreased from 7.75% to7.50%. 

The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.50% to 3.25%. 

The assumed rate of wage inflation was reduced from 1.00% to 0.75%. 

Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.50% to 4.00%. 

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale 
BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). 

For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined 
Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back I year for females). For disabled members, the 
RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for 
males) is used for the period after clisability retirement. There is some margin in the current mortality 
tables for possible future improvement in mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again when the 
next experience investigation is conducted. 

The assumed rates of Retirement, Withdrawal and Disability were updated to more accuyately reflect 
experience. 

Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined ·contributions. The actuarially 
determined contribution rates are determined on a biennial basis beginning with the fiscal years ended 
2016 and 2017, determined as ofJuly I, 2015. The amortization period of the unfunded liability has been 
reset as of July I, 2013 to a closed 30-year period. The following actuarial methods and assumptions 
were used to determine contribution rates reported in that schedule: 

Actual cost method Entrv ai:,e 
Amortization method Level percentage ofoavroll, closed 
Remainini:, amortization period 28 years 
Asset valuation method 5 year smoothed market 
Inflation 3 .25 percent 
Salarv increases 4.00 nercent. average, includini:, inflation 
Investment rate of return 7.50 percent, net of pension plan 

investment exoense including inflation 
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CITY OF NORTONV:[LLE, KENTUCKY 
GENERAL FUN][) 

",) SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES·, BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED .ITJNE 30, 2017 

-) 2017 
Variance 

Budgeted Amounts Favofitble . 
! Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 

~l General Government EX(!endlitures 
. 

,l 
Salaries and wages $ .144,600 $ 144,600 $ 29,279 $ 115,321 
Utilities 21,005 (21,005) 
Insurance 13,222 (13,222) 
Repairs and maintenance 56,700 56,700 14,606 42,094 
Miscellaneoµs 59,600 59,600 22,970 36,630 
Employee benefits 1,788 (1,788) 
Office supplies 5,610 · (5,610) 
Retirement 3,480 (3,480) 
Telephone 1,526 (1,526) 
Payroll taxes 3,192 (3,192) 
Professional fees 9,263 (9,263) 
Fuel 3,330 (3,330) 
Uniforms 1,782 (I, 782) 
Advertising 3,231 (3,231) 
Bank Charges 330 (330) 
Printing 2,356 {2,356) 
Postage 516 (516) 
Cemetery expense 1,660 (1,660) 
Dues and subscriptions 278 (278) 

Total General Govermnent 260,900 260,900 139,424 121,476 

Public Safetv Exl!enditures 
Fire Department 

Insurance 6,998 (6,998) 
Utilities 5,212 (5,212) 
Contracted services 3,627 (3,627) 
Repairs and maintenance 1,077 (1,077) 
Vehicle Repairs 1,072 (1,072) 

J Miscellaneous 829 (829) 
Fuel and oil 610 (610) 

) Office supplies 228 (228) 
) Salaries and wages 44 JOO 44100 44 100 

Total Fire Department 44,100 44100 19,653 24 447 

) Total Public Safety $ 44 IOO $ 44 IOO $ 19,653 $ 24 447 
i . 

' j 
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CI'fY OF NORTONVIJLJLE, KEN'fUCKY 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHJE:DULE OF KXlP'END]['fURES , BUIDGET AND ACTUAL \ 
FOR 'fJFi:E YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

,.,., 

2017 ! 

Variance 1 
Budgeted Am~unts Favorable 

1 Orip;iilal Final Actual. (Unfavorable) 

Public Streets E:iq;ienditures 
Utilities $ $ $ 20,680 $ (20,680) ·1 

Repairs and maiutenance 62,000 62,000 22,311 39,689 
License/Certifications 175 (175) 
Miscellaneous 1,054 (1,054) 
Fuel and oil 112 . (112) 

Total Public Streets 62,000 62,000 44.332 17,668 

Librai:y ExJ:!enditures 
Contract labor 12,700 12,700 6,000 6,700 
Utilities 587 (587) 
Repairs and maintenance 1,745 (1,745) 
Office supplies 1,456 (1,456) 

Total Library 12,700 12,700 9 788 2,912 

Debt Service 8,832 (8,832) ; 

Cagital Outlax 
General govermnent 13,789 (13,789) 
Fire department 74496 (74.496) 

Total Capital Outlay 88,285 (88,285) 

Total General Fund Exnenditnres $ 379,700 $ 379,700 $ 310,314 $ 69;386 

) 
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CITY OF NORTONVJ:JLLE, KEN1!'1UCKY 
WATER EN'fERPRl:SE FUND 

·,) SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES·- IIUDGET AND ACTUAL 
IFOR THE YEAR·ENDED JUNE 3(), 2017 

1 Variance 
~- -~l Budgeted Amounts Favorable 

Original Final Water Actual (Unfavorable) 
1 

Onerating Revenu'es 
Charges for service $ 245,200 $ 245,200 $ 295,510 $ 50,310 

1 Late fees 4,796 4,796 
Miscellaneous 225,700 225,700 1424 {224,276) 

) Total Operating Revenues 470 900 470 900 301,730 {169,170) 
O11erating Exnenses 

Depreciation 31,477 (31,477) 
I Salaries f!]ld wages 201,536 201,536 59,148 142,388 

\ Contract service 45,110 (45,110) 
I 

Utilities 37,019 (37,019) 
) Repairs and maintenance 9,624 (9,624) 

Insurance 15,989 (15,989) 
Chemicals 6,072 (6,072) 
Retirement 6,538 (6,538) 

'i 
Testing 4,041 (4,041) 
Health benefits · 9,618 (9,618) 
Miscellaneous 18,784 18,784 6,173 12,611 
Office supplies 5,219 (5,219) 
Payroll taxes 5,016 (5,016) 
Fuel and oil 2,743 (2,743) 
Postage 2,139 (2,139) 
Vehicle maintenance 1,780 (1,780) 
Telephone 2,438 (2,438) 
Professional 8,682 . (8,682) 
Advertising 533 (533) 
Dues and subscriptions 505 (505) 
Bank charges 17 (17) 
Supplies 3 (3) 
Uniforms 150 {150) 

Total Operating Expenses 220,320 220,320 260,034 (39,714) 

Income (Loss) from 011erations 250,580 250,580 41696 208,884 

Nononerating Revenues (!!)nenses) 

-· J Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (5,953) (5,953) . 
Investment income 68 68 
Interest expense and fees (40,280) (40,280) {22,467) (17,813) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) {40,280) (40,280) {28,352) (11,928) 

) Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 210,300 210,300 13,344 (196,956) 
Capital contributions 468,6\7 468,6i7 
Transfers in 5,321 5,321 

) Transfers ont (3,427) (3,427) 

Change in Net Position $ 210,300 $ 210 300 . 483,855 $ 273,555 

Net Position - Beginning 382,168 

) Net Position - Ending $ 866,023 

I -
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CITY OlF NORTONVlll,LE, KENTUCKY 
SEWER ENTEJRI'filSE FmID 

SCHEDULE OlF REVENtJES AND EXPlEND1TU1lES , BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FORTHE YEARENlDIEI> JUNE30.2017 

Budgeted Amounts Variance 
Favorable 

Original Final Sewer Actual (Unfavorable) 

Onerating Revenues 
Charges for service $ 658,500 $ 658,500 $ 313,922 $ (344,578) 
Late fees 233,006 233;006 

Total Operating Revenues 658,500 658 500 546,928 (111,572) 
Ouerating, EX(!enses 

Depreciation 162,294 (162,294) 
Salaries and wages 207,880 207,880 47,766 160,114 
Contract service 69,450 (69,450) 
Utilities 53,922 (53,922) 
Repairs and maintenance 23,707 (23,707) 
Insurance 23,715 (23,715) 
Chemicals 38,368 (38,368) 
Retirement 4,532 (4,532) 
Testing 24,321 (24,321) 
Health benefits 6,488 (6,488) 
Miscellaneous 9,157 (9,157) 
Office supplies 2;858 (2,858) 
Payroll taxes 5,378 (5,378) 
Fuei and oil 2,833 (2,833) 
Postage 2,101 (2,101) 
Vehicle maintenance 1,112 (1,112) 
Telephone 1,784 (1,784) 
Professional 12,170 (12,170) 
Advertising 762 (762) 
Dues and subscriptions 504 (504) 
Bank charges 125 (125) 
Uniforms 54 (54) 

Total Operating Expenses 207,880 207 880 493 401 (285,521) 

Income {1oss) from Onerations 450,620 450,620 53,527 (397,093) 

Nono~erating Revenues mx11enses} 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (42) (42) 
Investment income 47 47 
Interest expense and fees (153,120) (153,120) (131,586) 21,534 
Bad debts - (551) (551) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (153,120) (153,120) (13~132) 20,988 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 297,500 297,500 (78,605) (376,105) 
Transfers in 43,546 43,546 
Transfers out (5,196) (5,196) 

Change in Net Position $ 297,500 $ 297 500 (40,255) $ (337,755) 

Net Position" Beginning 1,515,056 

Net Position - Ending $ 1,474,801 
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Assets 
Cash equivalents 

Total Assets 

CITY OF NOR'fONV:1:JLJLE1 KENJUCKY 
COMBffiING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-NAJORGOVERNM'.ENTALJFUNIDS 
.1UNE30,2il17 

SEecial.Revenue Funds 

Municipal Cemete,y 
Aid Maintenance 

$ 122,813 $ 18,820 

$ 122,813 $ 18,820 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Permanent 
Fund 

Cemetery Total Other 
Perpetual Governmental 

Care Funds 

$ 5 434 $ 147 067 

$ 5 434 $ 147 067 

Fnnd Balance 
Nonspendable-Perpetual Care 
Restricted-Special Revenue Funds · 

$ $ $ 5,434 $ 5,434 
122,813 18,820 -~- 141,633 

Total Fund Balance 122,813 18,820 5 434 147 067 

Total Liabilities and Fund lBalamce $ 122,813 $ 18,820 $ 5 434 $ 147,067 
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crrY OlF NORTONVILLE,JKJENTUCKY 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVJENUJES, EXPENDITURE§ AND CHANGES 

',~) 

IN JFU1IID BAL AN CE 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -, 
lFOR THE YJEAR ENDJEIJ) JUNE 30, 2017 \ 

' 

Permanent 
Seecial Revenue Funds Fund 

Cerµetery Total Other 
Municipal Cemetery Perpetual Governmental 

Aid Maintenance Care Funds 

Revenmes 
Miscellaneous $ 1,100 $ $ $ 1,100 ) 

Cemetery lots 8,800 8,800 

Interest 70 3 1 74 

Total Revenues 1 170 8 803 1 9 974 

Ex!Jenditures 
Current 

Total Expenditures 
ExcessJDeficiency} ofRevenrnes 

Over Ex[!enditures 1170 8 803 1 9 974 

Other Financing Sources roses) 

Transfers In 3,813 1,060 4,873 

Transfers Out · (35,571) (2,320) (37,891) 
Total Other Financing Sources(Uses) (31,758) (2,320) 1 060 (33,018) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (30,588) 6,483 1,061 (23,044) 

Fund Balance - Beginning 153,401 12,337 4373 170,111 

Fund Balance -.Ending $ 122,813 $ 18,820 $ 5 434 $ 147 067 

) 
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BerryKingto_n& YtJeyrsc: 
· Certified PubhcAccountants · 

2822 North Main Street" Madisonville, KY 4243'1 
Phone 270-821-3355 " Fax 270-821-0101 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ONFNTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AN»OTHER. MATTERS BASED ON AN AOO:IT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORIDANCE w:i1tlli: 
GOVERNMENT A UiJJttNGSTANJJARJJS 

Honorable Mayor Scotty Harvey 
And Members of the City Council 
City ofNortonville, Kentucky 
Nortonville, Kentucky 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of · 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Nortonville, Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise City of Nortonville, Kentucky's basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated December 6, 2019. 

mternal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Nortonville, 

· Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Nortonville, 
Kentucky's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City 
ofNortonville, Kentucky's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation· of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material -weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in.internal 
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be 
significant deficiencies. (2017-1 through 2017-6) 

Compliance and Otheir Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the .City of Nortonville, Kentucky's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
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provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement m10unts. However, pr9viding an 
opinion on compliance with those' provisions was not an ol)jective of our audit, and accordingly; We do 
not express such an opinion, The results of out tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, 

City of Nortonville, Kentucky's Response to Findings 
City of Nortonville, Kentucky's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. City of Nortonville, Kentucky's responses were not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial s1atements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion <in them. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government A,uditing Standards in considering the.entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

M~~~~ tf/6 
December 6, 2019 
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CITY OF NORTONVJILLE. KENTUCKY 
CURRENT YEAR SCHE:i>Ul:,E OFFllNJl)INGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED .JUNE 30, 2017 

2017-1 Segregation of Ilnties 
Condition 
There is an absence of appropriate segregation of dnties consistent with appropriate control objectives. 

Criteria 
A prudent control environment requires various functions of internal control be allocated among various 
employees. 

Effect 
Although no instances were noted, lack of segregation of duties can create situations where assets are not 
properly safeguarded. 

Cause 
Lack of personnel. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management review its financial operation for opportunities to separate 
incompatible functions. Where segregation of duties cannot be achieved due to the size of the staff, 
management should maintain its awareness of the weakness and compensate with other controls. 

Response 
We concur with the finding but it is not economically feasible to hire additional employees. 

2017-2 No Written St!mdlairdl Operating ll"olicy 

Condition 
There is an absence of appropriate written statements of procedure. These statements should address all 
financial processes. 

Criteria 
A prudent control environment requires that a standard operating procedure be in place. 

Effect 
Delays in operations due to a lack of cross•training could result from one or more of the office staff being 
absent. 

Cause 
Lack of oversight concerning job descriptions and general control policies. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management create standard operating procedures and cross train its employees. 

Response 
We concur with the finding. 
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CITY OF NORTONV!LLE, KENTUCKY 
CURRENT YEARSCHEDULE OF FINJl)[NGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR 'fHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

2017-3 Inventory Improperly Taken 

Condition 
There is an absence of appropriate utilization of inventory control for consumable items. 

Criteria 
A prudent control environment requires that consumable iteins be inventoried for maintenance and repair 
issues that arise. 

Effect 
Inventory was riot being mon'itored, therefore, there is not a proper accounting of consumable items on 
hand. 

Cause 
Lack of attention to detail regarding monitoring items that should be inventoried. 

Recommendation 
We recommend a full inventory count for consumable items on hand and: the establishment of a 
monitoring system. 

Response 
We concur with the finding. 

2017-4 Budget Lacks Detail 

Condition 
There is an absence of a detailed line item budget and failure to adopt a current budget. 

Criteria 
A prudent contra I environment requires that a detailed line item budget be present to inform the citizens 
of managements intentions for the current year's resources. 

Effect 
A proper budget shows exactly where the City's resources will come from and where the City's resources 
will be spent. This is both informative for the citizens and a tool to be utilized by management. · 

Cause 
A lack of detail was given to the budget by management due to a transition in power and a lack of 
attention to detail. 

Recommendation 
We recommend completing detailed budgets for all future years and making them accessible to the 
public. 

Response 
We concur with the finding. 
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Cn'Y OF NOR.TONVllLLE, KENTUCKY 
CURRENT YIEAIR SCHEDULE OF FINXlfNGS A1'W RESPONSES 

FOR l'HE YEAR ENDED rum 30. 2017 

2017-5 Management Laclks Finamciai lilllformatiorn 

Condition 
There is an absence of detailed reports being supplied to management to make informed decisions. 

Criteria 
A prudent control environment requires that detailed reports be given to management on a regular basis 
in order for management to make informed decisions. Also, state compliance (K.R.S 83A.150) requjres 
city management provide counsel with operating statements including budgetary comparisons for each 
fund included in the annual budget at least quarterly. 

Effect 
Detailed reports show exactly how the City's resources are being used and how their decisions to use 
such resources affect the financial statements. 

Cause 
A lack of detail was given to management about the current financial position of the City. Management 
was only supplied with cash balances wheµ making decisions about how to use the City's resources. 

Recommendation 
We recommend providing operating statements and presenting budget to actual comparison reports on at 
least a quarterly basis as required by K.R.S 83A.150. 

Response 
We concur with the finding. 

2017-6 Council Meeting Minutes Supplemental Documentation Archival 

Condition 
There is an absence of supplemental documentation archival of the City Council meeting minutes. 

Criieria 
. A prudent control environment requires that detailed supplemental information and/or historical reports 

discussed during Council meetings be attached to City Council meeting minutes. 

Effect 
Detailed records of City Council meetings show exactly how the City's resources have been used and 
how the Council reached their decisions. 

Cause 
The City Council meeting minute summaries are stored in a binder without any additional supplemenial 
information. 

Recommendation 
We recommend attaching, supplemental information and/or historical reports discussed during Council 
meetings with the minute summaries. 

Response· 
We concur with the finding. 
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C][TY OF NORTONVILLE, KENTUCKY 
PRIOR YEAR SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUN:E 30, 2017 

2016-1 Segregation of Dnties 

Condition 
There is an absence of appropriate segregation of duties consistent with appropriate control objectives. 

Criteria 
A prudent control environment requires various functions of internal control be allocated among various 
employees. 

Effect 
Although no instances were noted, Jack of segregation of duties can create situations where assets are not 
properly safeguarded. 

Cause. 
Lack of personnel. 

Recommendation 
We reconunend that management review its financial operation for opportunities to separate 
incompatible functions. Where segregation of duties cannot be achieved due to the size of the staff, 
management should maintain its awareness of the weakness and compensate with other controls. 

Response 
We concur with the finding but it is not eccinomically feasible to hire additional employees. 

2016-2 No Written Standard! Operating Policy 

Condition 
There is an abs·ence of appropriate written statements of procedure. These statements should address all 
financial processes. 

Criteria 
A prudent control environment requires that a standard operating procedure be in place. 

Effect 
Delays in operations due to a lack of cross-training could result from one or more of the office staff being 
absent. 

Cause 
Lack of oversight concerning job descriptions and general control policies. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management create standard operating procedures and cross train its employees. 

Response 
We concur with the finding. 
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CITY OF NORTONVILLE, KENTUCKY 
PfilOR YEAR SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

JFORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE.30, 2017 

2016-3 Inventory Improperly Taken 

Condition 
There is an absence of appropriate utilization of inventory control for consumable items. 

Criteria 
A prudent control environment requires that consumable items be inventoried for maintenance and repair 
issues that arise. · 

Effect 
Inventory was not being monitored, therefore, there is not a proper accounting of consumable items on 
hand. 

Cause 
Lack of attention to detail regarding monitoring items that should be inventoried. 

Recommendation 
We recommend a full inventory count for consumable items on hand and the establishment of a 
monitoring system. 

Response 
We concur with the finding. 

2016-4 Budget Lacks Detail 

Condition 
There is an absence of a detailed line item budget and failure to adopt a current budget. 

Criteria 
A prudent control environment req_uires that a detailed line item budget be present to inform the citizens 
of managements intentions for the current year's resources. 

Effect 
A proper budget shows exactly where the City's resources will come from and where the City's resources 
will be spent This is both informative for the citizens and a tool to be utilized by maoagement. 

Cause 
A lack of detail was given to the budget by management due to a traosition in power and a lack of 
attention to detail. 

Recommendation 
We recommend completing detailed budgets for all future years and making them accessible to the 
public. 

Response 
We concur with the finding. 
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CITY OF NORTONVU,LE, KENTUICKY 
lPIDOR YEAR SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS ANID RESPONSES 

FOR THEYEAR. ENDED .:m:NE-30, 2017 

2016-5 Management Lacks Financial Information 

Condition 
There is an absence of detailed reports being supplied to management to make informed decis.ions. 

Criteria 
A prudent control environment requires that detailed reports be given to management on a regular basis 
in order for management to make informed decisions. Also, state compliance (K.RS 83A.150) requires. 
city management provide counsel with operating statements including budgetary comparisons for each 
fund included in the annual budget at least quarterly. 

Effect 
Detailed reports show exactly how the City's resources are being used and how their decisions to use 
such resources affect the financial statements. 

Cause 
A lack of detail was given to management about the current financial position of the City. Management 
was only supplied with ca~h balances when making decisions about how to use the City's resources. 

Recommendation 
We recommend providing operating statements and presenting budget to actual comparison reports on at 
least a quarterly basis as required by K.R,S 83A. l 50. 

Response 
We concur with the finding. 
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